

## NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 16 NOVEMBER 2016 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM.

### Present:

Cllr Tony Trotman (Chairman), Cllr Peter Hutton (Vice Chairman), Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Mollie Groom, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Glenis Ansell, Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Howard Greenman, Cllr Howard Marshall, and Cllr Chris Hurst.

# Also Present:

Cllr Bob Jones MBE

### 151 Apologies

Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Terry Chivers and Baroness Scott of Bybrook.

### 152 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

### Resolved:

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 26 October 2016.

### 153 **Declarations of Interest**

There were no declarations of interest.

# 154 **Chairman's Announcements**

There were no Chairman's announcements.

# 155 **Public Participation**

The Committee noted the rules on public participation.

# 156 Planning Appeals and Updates

The Committee noted the contents of the appeals update.

# 157 **Planning Applications**

# 158 <u>16/04920/FUL- Rookery Farm, Seven Bridges, Water Eaton, Swindon, Wiltshire, SN6 6JS</u>

John Dennis and Aaron Smith spoke in support of the application.

The planning officer introduced the report which was for the erection of an agricultural workers dwelling, livestock barn and machinery/workshop store and the creation of new access. A site plan and location plan were shown alongside photos of the site and proposed access. The officer recommended that the application be refused due to concerns about its siting and prominence on the landscape from surrounding areas and drew attention to the late observations.

There were no technical questions.

Members of the public were then invited to speak, as detailed above.

The local member, Cllr Bob Jones spoke in support of the application.

Following statements from the public the planning officer confirmed that the Council's agricultural consultant had considered the argument for the development in this location to be a marginal case.

In the debate that followed, the Committee considered that the dwelling would be damaging to the surrounding open countryside in the proposed location. The importance of supporting agricultural industry was acknowledged and it was suggested that a structure near to the highway on the edge of the site would be more acceptable in terms of the impact of the development, similarly a temporary structure would be more acceptable.

Cllr Hutton, seconded by Cllr Berry moved the officer recommendation that planning permission be refused for the reason set out in the report.

#### Resolved:

### To REFUSE planning permission for the following reason:

The proposed development would, by reason of its siting, scale, form bulk and mass in conjunction with the significant length of access road required to be created, result in harm to the visual amenities and open character of the countryside. Therefore, the development is considered to be contrary to Core Policy 51 & 57 i) & iii) of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and Paragraph 7 & 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

# 159 16/06342/FUL - Besants Garage, Main Road, Christian Malford, SN15 4AZ

Colin Read spoke in objection to the application in his capacity as a local resident and not on behalf of the parish council.

Mark Willis spoke in support of the application.

The planning officer introduced the application which was for the erection of a workshop building and stables, it was noted that the application was partly retrospective. The location of the site and photographs of the current development were shown alongside the plans for the site and details of the previously approved scheme. Members commented that it was difficult to compare the new plans with the previously agreed plans and it was explained that the span of the building had been enlarged, and there were changes to the dormer elevations and stepping down arrangements. It was confirmed that the application included a change of use for the adjacent land. The officer recommended that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions outlined in the report.

In response to technical questions, it was confirmed that the application was dissimilar to an application previously refused for a residential element to the dwelling; the current application gave no provision for residential use. The planning officer detailed where the building was to be widened beyond the approved scheme however noted that the eaves and ridge height would remain the same.

Members of the public were then invited to speak as detailed above.

The local member, Cllr Howard Greenman, spoke in objection to the application.

Following statements from the public the planning officer confirmed that under condition 5, use of the workshop should only take place between 10am and 6pm on Sundays.

In the debate that followed, members expressed disappointment that the development had not been built in accordance with the previously approved plans. The Committee considered that the new proposals were significantly different and larger than the previous application and as such would cause more harm. It was considered that the height, mass and scale of the proposal would fail to conserve the setting of the neighbouring property which was a historic building. It was also noted that the Parish Council had objected to the application. Concern was also raised that the application was similar to an application that had previously been refused, however it was noted that this was refused on the grounds that it included a residential element.

Cllr Greenman, seconded by Cllr Crisp, moved that the application be refused on the grounds that the scale, bulk, massing and design would result in harm to the neighbouring residential amenity and property through overbearing impact and harm to the character and appearance of the area and damage to the neighbouring heritage asset.

#### Resolved:

# To REFUSE planning permission for the following reason:

The proposed development, by reason of its scale, bulk, massing and design, will result in an unacceptable overbearing impact on the neighbouring property and consequent loss of residential amenity to occupiers. The proposal therefore conflicts with Core Policy 57 (vii) of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy and Paragraph 17 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

The proposed development, by reason of its scale, bulk, massing and design, will adversely affect the character and setting of the adjacent undesignated heritage asset to a degree not outweighed by other considerations. The proposal therefore conflicts with Core Policies 57(i) and 58 of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy and Paragraph 135 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

# 160 <u>16/08839/FUL- Land at Newlands, Littleton Drew, Chippenham, Wiltshire ,</u> SN14 7NB

Linda Peak spoke in objection to the application.

Kathleen Philips spoke in support of the application.

Cllr Jeff Batty, Grittleton Parish Council, spoke in objection to the application.

The planning officer introduced the application which was for the change of use of land from agricultural to equestrian, the construction of stables, horse walker

and associated parking/turning area. It was recommended that planning permission be approved, subject to the conditions detailed in the report. It was highlighted that the application was partly retrospective and the proposed site layout was presented. Photos of mobile field shelters were shown and it was explained that proposed conditions attached to permission would restrict the site for personal rather than commercial use.

Members were invited to ask technical questions, in response to which the planning officer advised that submitted plans should be to scale, however if councillors were concerned this was not the case, the submission of more detailed drawings could be conditioned.

Cllr Toby Sturgis spoke on behalf of the local member, Baroness Scott of Bybrook, in objection to the application.

In the debate that followed, the Committee expressed concern that, although horses were kept on neighbouring fields, the appearance of neighbouring sites was agricultural and the application in question appeared commercial due to the number of horses and installation of a horse walker. Members considered that the hardstanding, gates and paraphernalia were harmful in urbanising the site and that the fencing was harmful to the setting in the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). The Committee felt that the large gate to access the site was out of proportion and uncharacteristic of the area and that the application was contrary to policies of horse keeping in the AONB. The Chairman highlighted that there was already a right of vehicular access to the site and that the enforcement of conditions was not a planning consideration, however the Committee concluded that no conditions could make a development of this type acceptable in this location.

Cllr Sturgis, seconded by Cllr Greenman, proposed that the application be refused on the grounds of harm to the landscape of the area and AONB and non-compliance with AONB guidelines on the keeping of horses.

### Resolved:

### To REFUSE planning permission for the following reason:

The proposed development, by reason of the cumulative scale and form of physical development will have an urbanising effect on the site and its setting, resulting in harm to the character, appearance and openness of the landscape and intrinsic quality of the Cotswolds AONB. The proposal therefore conflicts with Core Policy 51(ix) of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy and Criteria 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 10 and 12 of the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty Management Plan 2013 - 2018

# 161 **Urgent Items**

There were no urgent items.

(Duration of meeting: 3.00 - 4.45 pm)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Beale, of Democratic Services, direct line 01225 718214, e-mail <u>Elizabeth.beale@wiltshire.gov.uk</u>

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115